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1                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Let's call this

2 meeting of the Hudson County Planning Board to

3 order.  Counsel, has this meeting been properly

4 noticed?

5                MS. BOGDANSKI:  Yes.  The meeting has

6 been noticed in accordance with open Public Meeting

7 Act, by the notice that is published in the Jersey

8 Journal, Star Ledger, and also posted on the County

9 Clerk's bulletin board and the Clerk of the

10 Freeholders, as well as the County Planning Board

11 web site.

12                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Madam Secretary, may

13 we have a roll call, please?

14                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Arencibia.

15                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Here.

16                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Bettinger,

17 absent.  Commissioner Choffo.

18                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Here.

19                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Glembocki,

20 absent.  Commissioner Hernandez, absent.

21 Commissioner Holloway, absent.  Commissioner Kopacz.

22                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  Here.

23                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

24                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Here.

25                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Ng,
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1 absent.  Commissioner Peralta.

2                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Here.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano.

4                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  Here.

5                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

6                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Here.

7                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, we have a

8 quorum.

9                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Would you please all

10 rise and salute the flag.

11               (Flag Salute.)

12                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Next item on the

13 agenda is Review and Adoption of the Meeting Minutes

14 from June 17, 2015.  Have all Commissioners had an

15 opportunity to take a look at the meeting minutes?

16 Any corrections?

17                MS. FERRARA:  I make a motion to

18 accept.

19                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Second.

20                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  I missed the last

21 meeting.

22                MS. FERRARA:  On a motion made by

23 Commissioner Mehta.  Second by Commissioner Romano.

24           Commissioner Arencibia.

25                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

Page 3

Veritext Legal Solutions
800-227-8440 973-410-4040



1                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

2                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Abstained.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Kopacz.

4                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  Abstained.

5                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

6                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

7                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

8                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

9                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano.

10                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  Aye.

11                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

12                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

13                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

14                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Next item on the

15 agenda are matters scheduled for public hearing.

16                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, the first

17 item on the agenda is Memorialization of Resolutions

18 to be considered at the last meeting, starting

19 Application 2015-10-SD/SP, which is just for the

20 site plan.  The applicant is CJUF II, Harrison

21 Holdings, LLC, located at 100, Cifelli Drive, Block

22 99, Lot 1.01, 2.01, 3.02, 4 and 8, 10-13, 18.01, 28,

23 34, 38-40; Block 100, Lots 1, 3.02, 11, 14, 16-18,

24 20-23, 33.02, Harrison.

25           On a motion made by Commissioner Mehta.
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1 Second by Commissioner Peralta.

2          Commissioner Bettinger, not present.

3 Commissioner Glembocki, not present.  Commissioner

4 Holloway, not present.  Commissioner Mehta.

5                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

6                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Ng, not

7 present.  Commissioner Peralta.

8                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

9                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano.

10                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  Aye.

11                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

12                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

13                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

14 Next applicant to be memorialized is 2015-17-SP;

15 County Road LLC, company of Bhasin Properties, LLC;

16 located at One County Road; located at Block 44,

17 Lots 2 & 4.

18           On a motion made by Commissioner Mehta.

19 Second by Commissioner Peralta.

20           Commissioner Arencibia.

21                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

22                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Bettinger,

23 not present.  Commissioner Hernandez, not present.

24 Commissioner Kopacz.

25                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  Yes.

Page 5

Veritext Legal Solutions
800-227-8440 973-410-4040



1                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

2                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

4                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

5                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano.

6                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  Aye.

7                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

8                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

9                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

10 The next application is 2015-21-SP; Applicant, The

11 Stevens Institute of Technology; located at 501-531

12 & 601 Hudson Street; Block 227, Lot 1; Block 228,

13 Lot 1 & 3, in Hoboken.

14           On a motion made by Commissioner Romano.

15 Second by Commissioner Peralta.

16          Commissioner Bettinger, not present.

17 Commissioner Glembocki, not present.  Commissioner

18 Holloway, not present.  Commissioner Mehta.

19                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

20                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Ng, not

21 present.  Commissioner Peralta.

22                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

23                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano.

24                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  Aye.

25                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.
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1                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

2                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

3 The next application is 2015-27-SP; Journal Square

4 Urban Renewal, LLC, Hopkins Group, LLC, located at

5 2851-2853 John F. Kennedy Boulevard; Block 10602,

6 Lot 49, Jersey City.

7           On a motion made by Commissioner Mehta.

8 Second by Commissioner Peralta.

9          Commissioner Bettinger, not present.

10 Commissioner Glembocki, not present.  Commissioner

11 Holloway, not present.  Commissioner Mehta.

12                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

13                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Ng, not

14 present.  Commissioner Peralta.

15                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

16                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

17                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

18                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  You skipped me.

19                MS. FERRARA:  You weren't in the

20 meeting at that point.  The next item on the agenda

21 is the next application to be memorialized,

22 Application 2015-31-SP, Shay Grinfeld and Helit

23 Greenfield; located at 513 Garden Street; Block 192,

24 Lot 9, in Hoboken.

25           On a motion by made Commissioner Romano.
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1 Second by Commissioner Mehta.

2          Commissioner Bettinger, not present.

3 Commissioner Glembocki, not present.  Commissioner

4 Holloway, not present.  Commissioner Mehta.

5                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

6                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Ng, not

7 present.  Commissioner Peralta.

8                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

9                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

10                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

11                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

12 The next application to be memorialized is

13 2015-33-SP; City of Hoboken; located at 500 Park

14 Avenue, Block 167, Lot 24, in Hoboken.

15           On a motion made by Commissioner Mehta.

16 Second by Commissioner Peralta.

17          Commissioner Bettinger, not present.

18 Commissioner Glembocki, not present.  Commissioner

19 Holloway, not present.  Commissioner Mehta.

20                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

21                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Ng, not

22 present.  Commissioner Peralta.

23                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

24                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

25                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.
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1                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

2                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  I'm sorry.  The

3 attorney is still not here.

4                MS. FERRARA:  I would recommend that

5 we move onto the other agenda items.

6                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Is there any

7 objection while we're waiting for the applicant to

8 appear?  All right.

9                MS. FERRARA:  Moving onto Item C,

10 Applications to be Administratively Approved,

11 starting with Application 2015-40-SP, New York SMA

12 Limited Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless; located

13 at 102-106 John F. Kennedy Boulevard; Block 347, Lot

14 11; in Bayonne.

15           The second application to be

16 administratively approved is 2015-44-SP, New

17 Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, AT&T; located at 1200

18 John F. Kennedy Boulevard; Block 22, Lot 1; in

19 Bayonne.

20           On a motion made by Commissioner Kopacz.

21 Second by Commissioner Romano.

22           Commissioner Arencibia.

23                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

24                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

25                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.
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1                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Kopacz.

2                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  Aye.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

4                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

5                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

6                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

7                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano.

8                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  Aye.

9                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

10                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

11                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

12 The next item on the agenda is Applications to be

13 Administratively Exempt, starting with Application

14 2015-36-SD, Bayonne Landco, LLC; located at 497-499,

15 501-503, 505-507, 509-515 and 517-519 Broadway;

16 Block 196, Lots 1 through 7; in Bayonne.

17           On a motion made by Commissioner Kopacz.

18 Second by Commissioner Romano.

19           Commissioner Arencibia.

20                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

21                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

22                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

23                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Kopacz.

24                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  Aye.

25                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.
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1                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

2                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

3                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

4                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano.

5                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  Aye.

6                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

7                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

8                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

9 The next item on the agenda is Applications to be

10 Exempt, starting with Application 2015-32-SP;

11 Applicant, Bayonne Landco, LLC; located at 501-519

12 Broadway; Block 195, Lot 2; Block 196, Lots 1, 2 and

13 4 through 7 in Bayonne.

14                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  I make a

15 motion.

16                MS. FERRARA:  I have to read the next

17 one.  These we do in a group.

18                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  I apologize.

19                MS. FERRARA:  The second application

20 is 2015-42-SP; Sprint Spectrum, LP; located at 75

21 Montgomery Street; Block 14301, Lot 7; in Jersey

22 City.

23                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Now I'm making

24 a motion.

25                MS. FERRARA:  On a motion made by
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1 Commissioner Choffo.  Second by Commissioner

2 Peralta.

3           Commissioner Arencibia.

4                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

5                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

6                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

7                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Kopacz.

8                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  Aye.

9                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

10                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

11                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

12                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

13                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Romano.

14                FREEHOLDER ROMANO:  Aye.

15                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

16                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

17                MS. FERRARA:  Chairman, I have no old

18 business.

19                MR. MEISNER:  Good evening,

20 Mr. Chairman, Board Members.  I'm the attorney on

21 behalf the Hudson Mews Urban Renewal, and I would

22 like to explain the project to you.

23                MS. FERRARA:  I actually have to read

24 the application.

25                MR. MEISNER:  I apologize.
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1                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, the next

2 item on the agenda is Site Plans, Subdivisions and

3 Other Matter Scheduled for Public Hearing.

4 Application 2015-07-SP; Hudson Mews, LLC, Seveda

5 Kurt; located at Paterson Plank Road; Block 27, Lots

6 1, 2, 6A, 17A, 18A, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23A, 24A, 25A,

7 and 26A, located in North Bergen.

8                MR. MEISNER:  Yes, as I was saying,

9 Mr. Chairman, my name is Barry Meisner.  I'm the

10 counsel for Hudson Mews, LLC.  If it is all right

11 with you, I would like to turn over the presentation

12 of the project Mr. Greg Polyniak of Neglia

13 Engineering Associates.

14               (The witness is sworn.)

15                MS. BOGDANSKI:  Can you please state

16 your name for the record, spell your last name?

17                MR. POLYNIAK:  Sure.  Gregory

18 Polyniak, Neglia Engineering Associates, 34 Park

19 Avenue, Lyndhurst, New Jersey.  I am a professional

20 engineer and professional planner in the state of

21 New Jersey.

22                MS. BOGDANSKI:  If you have any

23 exhibits that have not already submitted to the

24 Board, you need to mark those.

25                MR. POLYNIAK:  Sure.  Would you like
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1 me to give my qualifications?

2                MS. BOGDANSKI:  Yes.

3                MR. POLYNIAK:  Again, I'm a licensed

4 professional engineer and planner in the state of

5 New Jersey.  I have a bachelor's and master's degree

6 in civil engineering from Lehigh University.  I have

7 testified before this Board before and in Secaucus.

8 I have testified over hundred times in Bergen

9 County, Hudson County and Essex County, Monmouth

10 County and throughout the state of New Jersey

11 representing numerous applicants in condominium

12 projects throughout the state.

13                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Is there any

14 objections?  You're accepted.

15                MR. POLYNIAK:  I want to give a

16 presentation as it relates the existing conditions

17 on the site.  The existing site is located along

18 Paterson Plank Road, in the Paterson Plank

19 Road-Grand Avenue Redevelopment Area in the Township

20 of North Bergen.  It is an 11.75-acre-site.  It

21 contains three large industrial buildings that are

22 in various states of disrepair.

23           Other than the frontage of the property,

24 there is a 3.5-acre steep slope area along the

25 western side of the property, and on the board
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1 that's before you, it's in the packet, the steep

2 slope is that hashed area.  The property is exactly

3 set to the west of the slope area, there are other

4 industrial properties, and then Route 1 & 9.  To the

5 east of our property are a series of different uses.

6 There are some residential uses.  There are some

7 industrial uses.  This is the key catalyst project

8 that we're hoping will revitalize the area through

9 the resign of the delapidated facility that is out

10 of character with the neighborhood.

11           Along the frontage of Paterson Plank Road,

12 if you were to visit the site, the streetscape is

13 also delapidated, the sidewalks, the driveways, all

14 of that is delapidated.  What we are proposing to do

15 through the implementation of this project is to

16 create a new streetscape which includes hardscape

17 pavers, new concrete sidewalks, revised pedestrian

18 accessibility to the center of town.

19           The project as a whole is composed of 288

20 residential units.  Based on the redevelopment plan,

21 the document requires 1.5 parking spaces for each

22 unit, and we are providing 432 parking spaces

23 throughout the site.  The site is situated from

24 south to north with a series of buildings, and

25 they're labeled on the plan one through six.  In
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1 addition to those six residential buildings, there

2 is a vista as you enter the site of a proposed

3 clubhouse building, which is to be the focal point

4 as if you enter the facility and travel by the

5 facility and enter one of the parking spaces

6 throughout the site.

7           To access the site we provided two

8 separate driveways, one is to serve as the main

9 parking lot.  It's a divided roadway which again

10 will provided a vista which will contain landscaping

11 and a guard house along with the use of the entire

12 development, which residents will access one of the

13 parking spaces as they visit their intended

14 building.  In addition within that same parking lot

15 as you travel south, there is another access

16 driveway that is to be a gated driveway.  That

17 driveway serves for emergency purposes only.  Should

18 for any reason there be an accident on the site or

19 off the site, we would permit people to exit the

20 facility.  This driveway can be opened so that fire

21 and emergency vehicles could enter the property.

22           As you look at the building on the

23 southern side of the property, it contains 30

24 residential units.  There is small separate parking

25 lot that services those 30 residential units.  It
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1 contains 31 parking spaces.  That lot has been

2 designed and configured so that it is consistent

3 with the existing signal at Paterson Plank Road.  As

4 one were to travel southbound to Paterson Plank

5 Road, you would stop at the stop bar location, have

6 the ability to make a right-hand turn into the site,

7 as you travel down to access one of the parking

8 spaces.  If you're traveling northbound on Grand

9 Avenue or to northbound on Paterson Plank Road,

10 whenever the light turns to green, you would have

11 the ability to make a left-hand turn into the

12 property.

13           Similarly, with 13th Street being located

14 directly across from the access driveway, when that

15 leg of the intersection turns green, you will have

16 the ability to pull straight into the parking lot

17 and access one of the parking spaces.  Also, within

18 the County right-of-way, there is a left-hand-turn-

19 only lane to provide the visibility so that during

20 the peak hours a vehicle traveling northbound to

21 access to Route 3 and a vehicle turning to enter the

22 property, they're out of the travel way.  The

23 vehicles can continue on unimpeded towards the

24 north.

25           The stormwater management system on the
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1 property is proposed to satisfy all State

2 requirements and regulations.  We have provided

3 decorative light fixtures along the street frontage

4 and within the subject property.  All the utilities

5 are proposed to be connected within the County

6 right-of-way, and we will work with your Engineering

7 Department as the project goes forward.  As it

8 relates to any other County-related issues, I'll be

9 glad to address any questions or comments, or I can

10 go into more detail with respect to any other

11 aspects of the project.

12                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Questions or

13 comments?

14                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  I think

15 there was some requests that were made during the

16 review process about the driveway.  Could you just

17 go over a little of that?

18                MR. POLYNIAK:  Yeah, I'll be glad to.

19 During the Site Plan Review Committee meeting, there

20 was a series of items that were requested, which are

21 illustrated within the documents.  The first which I

22 will discuss relates to the restriping of Paterson

23 Plank Road, and it permits vehicles who are making a

24 left-turn movement while still permitting the

25 vehicles to travel northbound on Paterson Plank
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1 Road.

2           The second item that was discussed was the

3 revision of the exit drive that originally was to be

4 used and making it an emergency exit drive at this

5 point in time so that all of the movements would be

6 located at the main vista and entrance, and this

7 entrance driveway would be utilized only for

8 emergency conditions.  The other two driveway

9 locations at the Building 1, which is the southern

10 building, again, aligning it as best as possible

11 with the street, aligning it with the traffic

12 signal, so that it would be located away from the

13 striped stop bar at the main intersection, so that

14 it would be entered and utilized through a green

15 light signal and the signal changing color.

16           Secondly, with the driveway situated as

17 far north as possible to permit the ability to make

18 left-hand turns out of that driveway away from the

19 striped triangular island, which permits vehicles to

20 travel southbound either Paterson Plank Road or to

21 Grand Avenue, and that also provides additional area

22 so you will make right-hand turn and utilize the

23 traffic signal.

24                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  That exit

25 driveway was flipped, correct?
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1                MR. POLYNIAK:  Correct.  We flipped

2 it, and now it's more consistent with the existing

3 traffic signal so that the access patterns will work

4 with that signal.

5                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  And the stop

6 bar is between the two driveways?

7                MR. POLYNIAK:  Exactly, exactly.  So

8 that you stop at the stop bar if the light is green

9 during that to cycle, and you would be able to enter

10 during the green cycle.  Similarly, with the exit

11 drive, you would stop at that stop location, and

12 cars would queue until it turns green, and you would

13 have to ability to enter.  You would not be crossing

14 the striped line that exists, the triangular, the

15 triangular striped line that exists there.

16                MR. MEISNER:  If I can interrupt, we

17 have a traffic engineer, Mr. Brian Intindalo, if you

18 have further questions.

19                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Thank you.

20 Should we for his testimony then?

21                MR. MEISNER:  Whatever is best.

22                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  I think we

23 should have a traffic engineer address the

24 questions.  Is he going to present anything on the

25 impact?
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1                MR. MEISNER:  I believe he is

2 prepared to.

3                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Mr.

4 Polyniak, you did what?

5                MR. POLYNIAK:  I an the site

6 engineer.

7                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Let me stick

8 to drainage questions.  Sorry I jumped ahead.  So on

9 drainage, what exactly, I assume the Township of

10 North Bergen made certain requirements?

11                MR. POLYNIAK:  Correct.  Within the

12 drawing package, there is a grading and drainage

13 plan, which is Sheet 4.00, which you all have in

14 front of you.  It is similar to the site plan.  As

15 illustrated in the parking lot, there are a series

16 of detention basins in each of the parking lots,

17 which capture stormwater runoff and infiltrate it

18 into the ground.  There are catch basins also

19 strategically placed within the property line to

20 capture that runoff that was directed to those

21 locations.

22           As the site exists today, all stormwater

23 runoff is discharged to the existing pavement

24 surface and is permitted sheet flow down the slope

25 toward the west of the property.  We have provided
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1 improvement to capture the runoff directed to the

2 stormwater management basin alleviating that

3 existing condition.  We've also placed to the rear

4 of the property on the northern side of the property

5 behind the clubhouse building a gravel curb, which

6 is flush with the curbing of the property, and what

7 that will do is permit additional infiltration

8 before reaching the facility.  Should you have a

9 Hurricane Sandy or more significant stormwater, what

10 that would do is dissipate any of the stormwater

11 runoff flow's energy and flooding capacity prior to

12 its flowing down the slope.  It's been reviewed by

13 the Township of North Bergen's consultant, and it's

14 been accepted as designed.

15                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Is there any

16 direct connection into the County's storm system on

17 Paterson Plank Road?

18                MR. MEISNER:  There is no direct

19 connection.  The reason is the property slopes

20 dramatically from Paterson Plank Road to the back of

21 the property.

22                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Do you have

23 retaining walls on the perimeter of the property?

24                MR. POLYNIAK:  Correct.  We have a

25 retaining wall that's at the rear of the property.
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1 In some instances it's as little as a couple feet in

2 height.  There are some instances the wall is over

3 15 feet in height, and that will be designed subject

4 to the approvals that were granted.

5                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  I would like

6 to see is the applicant had the opportunity to file

7 a history of daily use with the slope near Paterson

8 Plank Road, and because the Palisades water is

9 culprit.  So if you're not charging the ground with

10 runoff, it's from what you're describing, you're

11 collecting it and putting it into the ground.  At

12 some point that flow will reach that pocket

13 traveling along the line to the lower grade.  I hope

14 you are taking into account that condition and the

15 neighboring properties and where the water is

16 directed to so it doesn't affect.  I won't be here

17 to supervise it.  The applicant will have to

18 consider because of the history of this area.  We at

19 the County have experienced failure just to the

20 north of this.

21                MR. POLYNIAK:  I understand that.

22 The rocks that we are replacing in the detention

23 basin, and a majority of it is more than 20 feet

24 deep, based on some preliminary borings that we've

25 put in.
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1                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  In terms of

2 utility openings, your sanitary and gas?

3                MR. POLYNIAK:  Correct.  We will

4 connect those directly to utilities as located in

5 the Paterson Plank.

6                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Those

7 utilities of most them, you can get them right here.

8 Come to the County Engineer's office to obtain a

9 road opening permit.

10                MR. POLYNIAK:  We will make sure.

11                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Is there any

12 work to the curb and sidewalks all along the

13 frontage, is there any replacement of the drainage

14 inlets?  Or I'm not sure if you looked at the

15 condition of the drainage inlets north.  You have to

16 comply with current DEP standards of what is going

17 in.  If you run into that, you have to install a

18 curb pieces.

19                MR. POLYNIAK:  And angle pieces.

20                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Right, that

21 is what we used cap of the foundation.  They also

22 should have lay-low drains too.  I'm pretty sure we

23 might have them already; in case they don't.  And

24 other concern that I have is typically a lot of

25 contractors, they aren't fully compliant.  Make sure
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1 the contractor is instructed exactly where the are

2 requirements, otherwise it's a violation of ADA,

3 meaning accidents.  So certainly make sure the ADA

4 handicapped ramp is inspected by County Engineer's

5 office.

6                MR. POLYNIAK:  I understand that.  We

7 agree, and we will make sure that we comply.

8                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Thank you.

9                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Any questions?

10                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Did this project

11 get approved by the local authority?

12                MR. MEISNER:  Yes, it is.  North

13 Bergen Planning Board approved it on May 28th.

14                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  What is that

15 across the street that comes to the drive?

16                MR. POLYNIAK:  The main entrance,

17 there is a street that's directly across that main

18 entrance drive.  There is an existing business

19 directly across from it.

20                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  I have a

21 question, Mr. Chairman.  Were there any conditions

22 with the approval from North Bergen?

23                MR. MEISNER:  Are there any

24 conditions set forth?  I mean, we received approval

25 from North Bergen, and we're complying with them.  I
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1 can get you a full list.  I don't have it available.

2                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  If you would

3 provide that to our Planning Department, that would

4 be great.

5                MR. MEISNER:  Of course.

6                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  And a copy of

7 the resolution.

8                MR. MEISNER:  Of course.

9                MR. TRIDENTE:  Mr. Chairman, I would

10 like to ask the engineer if he could just discuss

11 the shade tree requirements that are required along

12 the frontage of the property.  We haven't received

13 the revised site plan showing the tree placement,

14 and what the in-lieu-of-planting contribution will

15 be?

16                MR. POLYNIAK:  There are a series of

17 a street trees that are proposed along the frontage

18 of the property.  Originally, as I have illustrated

19 on this document, the street trees were located on

20 the western side of the sidewalk.  At the Technical

21 Site Plan Review Committee, we're going to be

22 relocating those street trees to be along the curb

23 line as requested by Hudson County.

24           Our concern was that because of the

25 right-of-way, they will grow into the travel lane.
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1 We will comply with whatever Hudson County requested

2 as it relates.

3                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Is there a

4 reason to request them to be put there?

5                MR. TRIDENTE:  According to the shade

6 tree requirement, they need to be along the

7 frontage.

8                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  With the

9 driveway and traffic and the curb and No Parking

10 plan, you have to ensure that the trees are not

11 growing into the road.  So I mean the engineer's

12 concern is a valid point.  The tree can grow and

13 plants grow.  I mean, we could have it further back

14 to not interfere.  There's a lot of truck traffic

15 along that road you might want to consider.

16                MR. TRIDENTE:  I defer to your

17 recommendations.

18                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  You will.  I

19 mean again, my concern is that if he's stating it's

20 the tree's survivability, a lot of traffic, truck

21 traffic, and depending on the size of the tree and

22 shape, all of that, they're going to get abuse from

23 all of the traffic.

24                MR. POLYNIAK:  We follow that.  If we

25 could curb them, we will follow.  We will do
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1 whatever is discussed by the Hudson County Planning

2 Board.

3                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  You're open

4 to wherever we want them, right?

5                MR. POLYNIAK:  Exactly, we will work

6 on that.

7                MR. TRIDENTE:  Can we just identify

8 how many shade trees, how many are required and how

9 many you're going to plant, and what the

10 in-lieu-of-planting will be?

11                MR. POLYNIAK:  The frontage would

12 require 50 street trees per the Hudson County

13 ordinances.  We have sufficient space on the lot for

14 21 street trees along the frontage.  So there is a

15 deficiency of 29 street trees.  I believe the

16 applicant recognizes that there is a monetary

17 contribution that is required as it relates to a

18 tree fund that would have to be addressed.

19                MR. TRIDENTE:  We need a signed

20 estimate from a landscape architect for that

21 estimate.

22                MR. POLYNIAK:  Our office has a

23 landscape architect.  We can provided that to you.

24                MR. TRIDENTE:  That's fine.

25                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  I guess
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1 we'll look at the trees, make sure that they're not

2 interfering with the vehicular traffic, and we can

3 see if it's best along the curb line, but I want to

4 make sure that the tree species is going to survive

5 and not grow into the traffic lane.

6                MR. POLYNIAK:  That was our concern.

7 We will work with the County.

8                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  We're fine.

9 Okay.  I think we will move onto the traffic

10 presentation.

11                MR. MEISNER:  Mr. Chairman, if I

12 could introduce Mr. Brian Intindola, our traffic

13 engineer.

14               (The witness is sworn.)

15                MS. BOGDANSKI:  If you could please

16 state your name for the record and spell your last

17 name, and to state your firm.

18                MR. INTINDOLA:  Brian Intindola,

19 I-n-t-i-n-d-o-l-a.  I am the traffic engineer with

20 Neglia Engineering Associates, at 34 Park Avenue,

21 Lyndhurst, New Jersey.

22                MR. MEISNER:  And Mr. Intindola,

23 would state your qualifications.

24                MR. INTINDOLA:  I have had the

25 pleasure of being before this Board for a service
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1 station application a while ago, and then other than

2 being before this Board, I have been before boards

3 on similar occasions in North Jersey and South

4 Jersey presenting traffic impact related to a prior

5 project as well as to serve as an eye and ears for

6 boards such as yours for traffic engineering.

7                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Is there any

8 objections to the witness's expertise?  Okay.

9                MR. INTINDOLA:  I'll just pick up

10 where my colleague left off is at the Hudson County

11 Planning process.  We needed advice to provide an

12 access pattern, that I think what we were able to

13 do, which balances access to our site but also

14 providing the capacity that's already on Paterson

15 Plank for motorists that are not involved with our

16 site.  Specifically, there is going to be one

17 central access, with a left-turn lane northbound

18 with an existing curb-to-curb area, and that would

19 be kind of toward the main driveway.

20                MS. FERRARA:  Would you mind bringing

21 up the site plan and demonstrating?

22                MR. INTINDOLA:  On our site plan,

23 Sheet 3, this will now be our main access way where

24 approximately three cars are comfortably stacking on

25 the site, left-turn lane on our on southerly access,
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1 it's arranged in such a manner that if you come out

2 13th Street up to the one-way, you have a green

3 light, you go right in, and the alignment is offset

4 within 20 feet, but if you have the green light from

5 13th, you can go right into the site, as well as if

6 you're coming up Grand or Paterson, you can make a

7 left turn.  So it's very convenient.  That's why we

8 did, some people call it English style.  We just

9 change the orientation, but it works great because

10 13th, the signal at 13th is kind of favored when

11 there's traffic, when there is a car there, and by

12 detection, a green light comes to 13th Street, and

13 they can access the site, the smaller building.  It

14 almost has its own traffic signal at the entrance.

15 It works well.  It lines up here to the southern

16 portion.

17           The other driveway is associated with the

18 outlying of the building.  It is wide enough for a

19 left-turn vehicle and right-turn car needing to

20 exit, they can, but we're not -- we're not striping

21 for it.  If need be, it can be because it will be

22 wide enough that the drive can accommodate this

23 situation.

24           The overall trip generation for this site,

25 I am sure you've heard of it, the ITE trip
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1 generation rates for the apartment building is 220,

2 and in our revised report we provided the trip

3 generation as well as our initial report.  So

4 there's 288 apartment proposed, and what we have in

5 term of trip generation in the a.m., 29 vehicle

6 enter and 116 to exit for a total of 145 vehicles

7 associated with site in the morning.  In the p.m.,

8 it's 114 vehicles to return, 62 to exit for a total

9 of 176 vehicles during the evening peak hour.

10           We brought the project through in typical

11 fashion.  We did traffic counts on March 3rd and

12 March 4th which are to Tuesday and Thursday, I

13 believe, and then we overlay the traffic, what we

14 know is the level of service into the site work

15 within the stacking, and which is I believe Hudson

16 County's primary concern.

17           The second concern Hudson County would

18 have would be the main driveway that, due to the

19 review process, we eliminated one driveway, and it's

20 now an emergency driveway, and we back-checked to

21 make sure that this driveway worked well, level of

22 service is a D, which is basically what you would

23 find on any side street unsignalized approach, but

24 not to the point there is an inordinate jam into the

25 site.  It's about 1.2 vehicles or 1.35 vehicles in
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1 that Level of Service D.  I believe that works well,

2 and you can avail yourself of the stacking that's

3 already provided in the median geometry provided.

4           Those are the overview of traffic.  I know

5 there was the discussions at Hudson County, you

6 would need to revisits traffic patterns, whether it

7 be a warrant study or however the County Planning

8 intended it to do.  Overall, I believe with the

9 left-turn access will work well, and what we're

10 proposing, the site will work as well.

11           And it also in our impact study, we didn't

12 take a curve for the removal of the former truck

13 traffic use.  I counted a minimum I think there is

14 nine existing truck bays that go right onto Paterson

15 Plank as well as the interior.  So I recall it was

16 busy at the time, and we didn't take a credit for

17 mass transit use because this particular, although

18 you can walk to mass transit, it's not right on

19 Paterson Plank in this area.  We thought it would be

20 more conservative to not to include mass transit,

21 but if in the future that New Jersey Transit bus

22 operators revisit the changes we offer there, that

23 will be lovely for patrons.

24                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Can you give

25 an overview of the pedestrian access?
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1                MR. INTINDOLA:  In addition, we are

2 providing a pedestrian management and continuing to

3 do so throughout with handicap ramps to ADA

4 specifications.  That's my travel presentation in a

5 nutshell.

6                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Again, going

7 from south to north, my question was the access at

8 the traffic signal at the entrance driveway at the

9 intersection of 13th and Paterson Plank Road, that's

10 easier for them to enter?

11                MR. INTINDOLA:  Yeah.  They have

12 their own traffic light, and you may want adjust the

13 timing because I think it favors 13th a little bit

14 too much.

15                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Depends on

16 the time of day, so sometimes it does.  You have an

17 unusual signal.  Paterson Plank Road angles into the

18 intersection of 13th, and you kind go on Grand

19 Avenue.  That's a concern.  It's a very unusual

20 configuration to enter, and I'm concerned by the

21 driveway orientation, and I'm especially concerned

22 with the exiting driveway from that parking lot

23 because that traffic stops at the signals going

24 southbound on Paterson Plank Road, it's queuing

25 cars.  You're going to be blocking those markers
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1 from the exit.

2           It could happen.  It's problematic

3 especially during rush hour, when you have people

4 trying to make a left turn out, but there is not

5 that many cars.  It's a very small parking lot.

6                MR. INTINDOLA:  It's almost

7 self-contained.  Through the trip generation it

8 works.

9                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Are these

10 going to be rental or condominium?

11                MR. INTINDOLA:  I'm not going to

12 speak to that.

13                MR. MEISNER:  It's going to be

14 rentals.

15                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  So you have

16 no owner.  My understanding is an issue with that

17 intersection stop bar.  We get phone calls to move

18 that stop bar now.  We can't.

19                MR. INTINDOLA:  It's a traffic light.

20 I preferred that the stop bar is here because then

21 the driveway is not no-man's land where is there

22 isn't a stop bar to control it.

23                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  The stop bar

24 or the placement of the stop bar is a limitation on

25 the distance from the signal.  We have to always
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1 explain that to people.  That stop bar is where it

2 is.  We can't shift it back 30 feet to make room to

3 make it easier for people to get out of there.  So

4 that cannot happen.

5           And if the future, you mentioned if there

6 are studies when those two driveways try to utilize

7 the signal, the owner could do that if they come to

8 us for approval on that.  Same thing with the major

9 driveway.  Right now it's unsignalized.  You

10 indicated Level of Service, now it's D?

11                MR. INTINDOLA:  Yea, which is typical

12 for unsignalized.

13                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  If anything

14 changes on Paterson Plank Road, it's a very

15 difficult traffic roadway, especially with trucks,

16 if you get an accident pattern and need to signal

17 it, it would be up to the owner to do the boring

18 analysis and design the construction of the signal,

19 which the County would need to approve.  We would

20 take control of that signal once it's installed, if

21 that does happen.

22                MR. INTINDOLA:  That's a reasonable

23 approach.

24                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Only because

25 the County does not construct for private driveways,
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1 only for public streets and intersections.  So if

2 need be that the developer installs the signals.

3 And the other questions I have, I'm not sure if you

4 touched on, the entry to the site is going to be

5 gated?

6                MR. INTINDOLA:  Yes.  It will be

7 gated.  The actual system will be depending on

8 ultimately what management is comfortable with.  It

9 could be a key fob system.  It could be a call-in

10 system that you put your code in the key pad, or if

11 you are a visitor, you can key pad call the

12 apartment you're going to visit, and it's typically

13 efficient systems.

14                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Can you

15 explain that process in term of my concern is that a

16 lot of people coming in, and they're waiting and

17 queuing and backing up?

18                MR. INTINDOLA:  My experience is that

19 practical matters, the out gate in the morning is

20 typically left open because people are going to

21 work.  That could be from like 7:30 to 9:30, and

22 similarly when you come home in the evening from

23 work, that 4:30 to 6:30, that gate may be open for

24 convenience.  After hours, the gates come down.

25 Then you may have a key fob or the code.  Use a code
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1 to come in.  The gates raises up, goes back down.

2 Then if you have a visitor, you have a speaker key

3 pad here, I'm here to visit, put the number in, and

4 that's it basically.

5                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  How far is

6 the gate from the Paterson Plank Road?

7                MR. INTINDOLA:  Just looking at the

8 general scale, it's about almost 160 feet.  So it's

9 an 18 foot width.  It's a generous lane.  There is a

10 cutout should you need to back up for whatever the

11 reason, the gate is not operational, and you can cut

12 through and then you can back out.  It's not exactly

13 a turnaround, but you can now go in the right

14 direction.

15                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  So you are

16 utilizing that entrance there?

17                MR. INTINDOLA:  Yeah, I mean would be

18 directed in that area.

19                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Is that a

20 24-hour, seven days a week security guard?

21                MR. INTINDOLA:  I believe there is

22 going to be owner representation on the site, yes.

23                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  There is

24 always someone there in case someone has to stop.

25                MR. INTINDOLA:  Sometimes a moving
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1 truck will show up, and they can manage that.

2                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Some places

3 have an automated gate, and no one is there when you

4 call up.

5                MR. INTINDOLA:  Greg can speak to

6 that.

7                MR. POLYNIAK:  There will be someone

8 on-site that's going to be a super that will manage

9 the property, will be able to help anybody with

10 moving in and directing traffic and moving vehicles.

11 The guard house is a decorative feature.  It's not

12 going to be manned 24/7.  I'm sure they will be able

13 to call the manager on-site and address the issue

14 that occurs late at night so they can address it.

15                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Your process

16 is basically one lane in.  I just want make sure

17 that queuing problems, if you run into that once

18 it's fully constructed and built out, and you run

19 into issues with a key backing up and causing a

20 hazardous condition.  Obviously, people are not

21 expecting a car to be stopped, especially in the

22 intersection.  They would have to, the owner would

23 have to rectify that in some way, either adding an

24 extra lane or adding someone to look out for it.

25 The developer will rectify that.  Obviously, it's a
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1 condition that we are concerned about.

2                MR. INTINDOLA:  Based on my

3 experience, you know, applying queuing theory to the

4 entire system, I have yet do a queue calculation

5 based in backing queue where you have more than a

6 half a vehicle in the queue, based on the arm

7 response of 30 seconds per vehicle, given the, like

8 I say, that peak hour in the p.m., they usually

9 leave the gate open just for convenience.

10                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  So in a

11 situation someone goes there, and there's nobody

12 home, you can back up, and you make a U-turn around

13 the bump out, or if you people are coming at the

14 same time for a party, they will have to bring it

15 up.  The scenario is problematic.  The complaints

16 about it could be looked into for the owner or

17 developer to rectify.  It's nothing that the County

18 will tolerant.

19                MR. INTINDOLA:  Understood.

20                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Just letting

21 you know, just like the traffic signal.  If you need

22 it, we are looking to the developer to install it.

23                MR. INTINDOLA:  Very good.

24                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  So the

25 left-turn lane improvements on the Paterson Plank
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1 Road, you need to include the trees, submit those

2 final plans to the County's engineer to obtain a

3 road opening permit before you proceed with that

4 construction.

5                MR. INTINDOLA:  It's been my

6 experience with the trees as well, that you can back

7 them up on the back side of the sidewalk, I think

8 their survivability would be better because when

9 people come up there and negotiating the hill and

10 the left turn at the same time, they kind of ride

11 along the curb, and it might be better for the trees

12 to be put back as far possible.

13                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  We have to

14 look at that because the trees also create a buffer

15 for pedestrians too with that kind of truck traffic,

16 and the trees back side, there is a negative that

17 people will be walking closer to traffic.

18 Obviously, we have got to look at this closely.

19                MR. INTINDOLA:  It might even be an

20 even mix, tree on the side, tree on the curb, tree

21 on the development side, so then you get the best of

22 both worlds.

23                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  We have to

24 look at the section and make sure we get enough

25 width for pedestrian management, and trying make
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1 sure it all works out well.  That's all I have, Mr.

2 Chairman.

3                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  I have one

4 question, Mr. Chairman, just to rectify for the

5 record, your client is willing to get a study done

6 on the road to justify to signal, he is willing

7 to -- your client is willing to pay for that and

8 install it?

9                MR. INTINDOLA:  It's a specific --

10 there's two areas of concern based on the County

11 Planning Board, is that we believe that the

12 southerly driveway will work well, and you don't

13 need traffic signal there.  This is the genesis of

14 the whole thing.  If we believe there is capacity

15 that would be enough exiting traffic to warrant a

16 signal, if we were to do a signal warrant, we would

17 revisit should there be any issue.

18           We also discussed with the Planning Board

19 should there be an issue, we can revisit the

20 emergency driveway, reopening it as an exit only so

21 that you can disburse the exiting traffic to the

22 back.  That's something we would look at.

23 Ultimately, if the access to the site would need

24 further investigation or a warrant study, then we

25 would take it to that point.  Then the next level is
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1 funding the construction of the traffic signal,

2 obviously, if we would get to that point.

3                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  So is that a

4 yes?

5                MR. INTINDOLA:  A kind of maybe.  But

6 overall, we would not be providing because that was

7 not part of the discussion.  We would look at the

8 warrant study.

9                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Some people in

10 the background --

11                MR. INTINDOLA:  Yeah.  I am the

12 traffic engineer of the site.  I don't believe we

13 need to put a traffic signal there.  It will work

14 well.

15                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  I'm sorry.

16 We agree too based on your traffic impact study, I

17 believe, we have no problem, it will work well the

18 way it is, but we can't predict the future with

19 different traffic patterns, and there has to be some

20 reason, a high of number accidents at the right

21 angle traffic signal that meets the warrants.  If it

22 meets the warrants for a traffic control devices or

23 a traffic signal, you're obligated to install it.

24 So but as I mentioned early, we do not install

25 traffic private driveways.
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1                MR. INTINDOLA:  What is interesting

2 about this project is that although it's almost like

3 the land area is available for us to develop, it

4 limits the trip generation ultimately in the future.

5 If you take the entirety of the site, the density of

6 trip generation, if you can't fill the entire site

7 because you have a slope restriction.  That's why

8 I'm confident that you will not need a traffic

9 signal here at the main driveway.  We could queue

10 all the traffic if need be.  We have accommodation

11 for six cars, if there was that peak condition, and

12 the next phase if need be would be what we had

13 discussed with the County Planning Board, would be

14 vehicle right turn, no left out at certain peak

15 hours, which is pretty typical, or if you have got a

16 condition that's a right-turn-only driveway.  Those

17 would be the steps that we would go through before a

18 full blown traffic signal.

19                MR. POLYNIAK:  To add to Mr.

20 Intindola's testimony, we I guess met with the

21 Hudson County Planning and Engineering staff, which

22 occurred approximately two weeks ago.  There was

23 discussions with the municipal engineer and the

24 staff that at these driveway locations, there may be

25 potential widening or stripe changing to permit only
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1 right turns at both of the driveways, so that the

2 access wouldn't create queuing issues or any exit

3 timing issues before the signal would be necessary

4 for the development.

5           So there are a series of ways to address

6 any issue that potentially would occur on-site

7 through other infrastructure improvements.  In

8 addition, we expected in the future to see, being

9 this is as Barry mentioned was a catalyst project

10 for the area, we expect to once our project is

11 developed and other projects begin to come online in

12 the area, one of our concerns would be with the

13 condition of requiring a traffic signal, we

14 shouldn't be punished for being the first per se as

15 it relates to the redevelopment we anticipate

16 occurring in the area, as the Downtown area of North

17 Bergen slowly moves to this area.

18           That's why in our opinion, there are ways

19 outside of a traffic signal to address the County's

20 concern, and also we expect other development to

21 come online, and at that point in time, it would be

22 their responsibility to address the concerns because

23 our development wouldn't be creating those concerns.

24 We would also propose the potential solutions that

25 we discussed at that meeting with the Hudson County
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1 staff.

2                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Mr.

3 Chairman, I'm agreeable to alternatives to the

4 traffic signal if they provide a solution, but if

5 you do need a signal, and based on I'm presuming

6 accident patterns, same thing with the amount of

7 traffic on that road, it's the responsibility of

8 developer to install the traffic signal.  All

9 developers are required to do it if it meets the

10 warrants for a signal.  It's for their operational

11 use.

12           When you look at the cost of a signal,

13 $150,000, at a T intersection that doesn't need a

14 full blown traffic signal.  When it comes to the

15 installation of one, you're probably more in that

16 price range, but if you don't need it, you don't

17 need it, and but if you do need it, if there's

18 people that come into my office, and they complain

19 to me, and I get this, it does happen from time to

20 time, we go to the developer and try to come up with

21 a solution, and see if you can provide an additional

22 lane.  The developer is doing it.

23                MR. POLYNIAK:  We have a series of

24 ways that were presented in our meeting with the

25 Hudson County staff to address that concern before a
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1 signal would even be discussed, and with those

2 improvements, we don't feel we even come close to it

3 being warranted.

4                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  I have a

5 question as far as is there a time that we have

6 encountered a left turn only at certain time that we

7 have approved?  I don't recall that.

8                MR. POLYNIAK:  It's not specific to

9 Hudson County but in other jurisdictions, not

10 specifically to Hudson County, but other

11 jurisdictions there has been time limits for a left

12 turn.

13                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  I wasn't

14 finished with my question.  I don't recall, I've

15 been on this Board for 12 years, I don't recall ever

16 seeing time restrictions.  I'm not sure.  I could be

17 wrong.  Because when you put time restrictions, you

18 know, eight out of ten people don't have any time

19 line.  They are going to make a left turn when they

20 want to make a left turn.

21                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, I would

22 agree it's not our practice.  It is something that

23 is done across the state, but it's not something

24 that we do.  I have to say I don't recall even

25 approving an application with that condition.
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1                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  We have them in West

2 New York as well.

3                MS. FERRARA:  Not on our County

4 roads.

5                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  We do have

6 to entertain it.  If you want to try something,

7 there's something you want to try that might provide

8 a solution, we can certainly consider it.  I mean

9 it's, again, I'm not sure if it needs an ordinance

10 for that.

11                MR. POLYNIAK:  That would be one of

12 the proposed if you came to us and said you had an

13 exorbitant amount of calls.  There are other items

14 and ways we can address, not even having a time

15 restriction, only permitting right-hand turns out,

16 and you would still have the ability to travel and

17 to move into the Township to access where you needed

18 to go.  We have reviewed this again with your staff

19 and also with the Township.  We discussed these

20 items should they need to occur in the future, and

21 it seemed like it was acceptable at that meeting we

22 attended.  That is based on the travel study

23 currently.  It doesn't have to be based on anything

24 in future, correct?

25                MS. FERRARA:  Correct.  I think the
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1 County Engineer is accepting the traffic engineer's

2 analysis that the current configuration of the

3 driveway and circulation works for undercurrent

4 conditions.  I guess in terms of as the Board

5 Members know, once we give them approval, it's

6 approval for that, there is no coming back in a

7 three-year time frame to revisit these issues.

8           It's important for us to stipulate a

9 future condition as the applicant has stated, this

10 is the type of project that could spur other

11 development, and if there as an accident pattern

12 that occurs on this road that might be exacerbated

13 by this development, I think the applicant has

14 agreed to explore other ways to minimize any

15 potential traffic issue that may arise.

16           But I think what I would like to applicant

17 to understand is that if all of those different

18 mitigations do not address any escalating accident

19 or traffic problems from this site, that they

20 understand that the County will not be financially

21 responsible for installing any traffic signals.

22                MR. POLYNIAK:  We understand.

23                MS. FERRARA:  Does that alleviate

24 concern, Commissioner?

25                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Yes, thank you.
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1                MS. FERRARA:  Does that answer your

2 question, Mr. Chairman?

3                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Yes.  Thank you.

4                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  This application

5 is going forward, and there are a couple projects in

6 North Bergen.  I think north of this project, there

7 are three or four sites already approved for another

8 125 apartments.

9                MR. POLYNIAK:  Correct.  We're aware

10 of it.

11                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Do your traffic

12 studies take into consideration the approval and

13 those future development?

14                MR. INTINDOLA:  Typically, we use a

15 growth rate.  It would be reflective of general

16 background growth, and we checked with North Bergen

17 as we wrote our report to see if there was any

18 projects that we should specifically be aware of

19 that were active, and they did not identify any at

20 the time.  There was a car wash to the north of us

21 that's dormant, and I believe that's becoming a

22 park.

23           Some projects that have prior approvals

24 are now being revisited.  North Bergen did not

25 notice us.  We requested future growth projects
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1 specifically for our traffic study.  Given that you

2 heard of them, I believe even if they went ahead

3 with any projects, we used a New Jersey Department

4 of Transportation growth rate specific to the

5 corridor.

6                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Your approval in

7 North Bergen was May 28th?

8                MR. MEISNER:  It was May 28th.

9                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  I think north of

10 Paterson Plank Road, I think that is making 19 or 20

11 condominiums.  Also right on the area, there are two

12 projects already approved for 40 or 50 apartments

13 each.

14                MR. INTINDOLA:  At the time of our

15 inquiry with the Planning Board, North Bergen did

16 not raise the projects you're talking about for

17 future forecast for traffic.  If they felt that was

18 needed, I'm sure they would have told us.  We did

19 make the inquiry about future projects.  We always

20 do.

21                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  You got your

22 parking approved?

23                MR. INTINDOLA:  Specific to?

24                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  There is a

25 parking area with tandem parking.  So have we looked
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1 at the parking?  Is it for one apartment only to

2 include tandem parking?  I would like that you

3 consider not making the different apartments.  It

4 should be for one apartment.

5                MR. POLYNIAK:  The approval of the

6 project permitted tandem parking because when you

7 look at the number of two-bedroom units located

8 across the site, it would function similarly to say

9 a single-family house that has a one-car garage that

10 has two cars.  You would work out with the person

11 that you live with your schedule during the night or

12 during day so that you could jockey your cars so

13 that they are situated correctly.  Those two parking

14 spaces, the tandem parking spaces, will be assigned

15 to the two-bedroom units.

16                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  That's what I

17 was taking about.  So you explained to them the

18 tandem parking of that parking area?

19                MR. POLYNIAK:  We provided testimony

20 and it related to the Township Planning Board that

21 discussed what I just explained.  The Board agreed

22 that those parking spaces are not different than any

23 single-family residence that had a one-car garage

24 and, again, that's assigned to the two bedroom

25 units.  We expect within those units to have two
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1 adults of age that could drive.

2                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  It depends on

3 the approval in North Bergen.  This was the end of

4 May.  Those were in June.  I just to make sure that

5 we are doing that what approval asks of you.

6                MR. POLYNIAK:  Most definitely.  We

7 will address everything that we listed with the

8 review committee.  Something also that I was remiss

9 in not discussing that was also part of the

10 approval, to the north of our property, there is

11 that vacant car wash that was discussed by Mr.

12 Intindola.  That applicant is going to be

13 contributing funds to redevelop that site into a

14 public park, which can be utilized by the residents,

15 also all resident in the Township, and the park will

16 be funded by the applicant that develops it to fit

17 the needs of the Township.

18                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Any questions?

19                MR. TRIDENTE:  Mr. Chairman, as we

20 discussed at the Site Plan Review Committee, there

21 was some parking space removal that was needed to

22 facilitate that left-turn lane.  Could you discuss

23 how many were needed to make that left-hand turn

24 happen?

25                MR. POLYNIAK:  That number as I there
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1 today, I believe it's four.

2                MR. TRIDENTE:  You're talking the

3 parking spaces in front of the gas station?

4                MR. POLYNIAK:  The gas station and

5 forklift area, that is active, and there is a large

6 gray building that's active.  It's for sale.

7                MR. TRIDENTE:  That gray building is

8 where the 55 units were approved.

9                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  You have to be

10 sure to clear the car queue area.  What about

11 something like UPS or FedEx or people that have a

12 tractor?  Is there an area there for parking for

13 them on the site?

14                MR. POLYNIAK:  Typically those

15 deliveries by Fed Ex or moving truck occur during

16 the day.  People are at work and the spaces will be

17 available for those trucks to pull in.  As it

18 relates to the entrance driveway, also to the

19 property, as Mr. Intindola has discussed, the

20 driveway is more than sufficient to fit two cars

21 adjacent to one another.  There has been discussions

22 related to the number of cars, there is actually

23 double because you could stack two cars if we had a

24 queuing issue in that area.

25           That's one of the reasons we provided that
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1 width is so that you could have ability to do so.

2 It's an 18-foot entrance and 18-foot exit.

3 Typically, you can provide a situation of rows.  If

4 a delivery vehicle had to talk to building

5 management, it would not impeded traffic if there

6 was that specific condition.  There is in part of

7 the drawings, that there are truck turning template

8 plans for trucks accessing the site.  Also,

9 emergency vehicles having the availability to access

10 the site to fight fires.

11                MS. FERRARA:  Let me recap the issues

12 that are before the Board, Mr. Chairman.  So the

13 applicant will be installing new curb and sidewalks

14 along the frontage.  The applicant is required to

15 have 50 shade trees.  He's planting 21 and

16 contributing for 29.

17                MR. POLYNIAK:  Correct.

18                MS. FERRARA:  The applicant will

19 continue to work with the County if there is a need

20 to address escalating traffic issues and accidents,

21 and to address possibly those issues for on-site

22 changes and egress, but the applicant is aware that

23 if doing those doesn't reduce any sort of accidents

24 or mitigate the traffic issues, then the applicant

25 is aware that the County is not responsible for any
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1 future improvement or any traffic signals.

2                MR. POLYNIAK:  Correct.

3                MS. FERRARA:  And the applicant has

4 agreed to coordinate with the Planning Division as

5 well as the County Engineer's the placing of the

6 shade trees along the curb.  And the applicant

7 agrees to conform with all ADA specifications along

8 the site.

9                MR. POLYNIAK:  Correct.

10                MS. FERRARA:  I believe that is all

11 the conditions; of approval.  Commissioner

12 Arencibia, do you have any other conditions?

13                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  I agree with

14 the project with the conditions.

15                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Thank you.

16                MS. FERRARA:  That's all I have,

17 Mr. Chairman.

18                MR. TRIDENTE:  Mr. Chairman, before

19 you take a vote, I just want to remind the applicant

20 that they're required to contact our office for

21 final site plan review of the site and inspection,

22 and therefore, you will receive a letter of

23 completion, which we will forward to the zoning

24 officer, and he is able to give you a certificate of

25 occupancy.
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1                MR. MEISNER:  We understand.

2                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  I make a motion

3 to approve.  This particular site has been vacant

4 for a very long time.  It's a beautiful

5 implementation for the location, and I look forward

6 to when it's complete.

7                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Second.

8                MS. FERRARA:  On a motion made by

9 Commissioner Mehta.  Second by Commissioner Choffo.

10           Commissioner Arencibia.

11                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Aye.

12                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Choffo.

13                COMMISSIONER CHOFFO:  Aye.

14                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Kopacz.

15                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  Aye.

16                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Mehta.

17                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Aye.

18                MS. FERRARA:  Commissioner Peralta.

19                COMMISSIONER PERALTA:  Aye.

20                MS. FERRARA:  And Chairman Cryan.

21                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  Aye.

22                MS. FERRARA:  The motion has passed.

23                MR. MEISNER:  On behalf of the

24 applicant, we certainly would like to thank the

25 Planning Board and the Chairman for your time this
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1 evening.  We're very excited to bring this project.

2                MR. HUTTLE:  Frank Huttle, for the

3 record, applicant, owner and builders.  We thank the

4 Planning Board.  We are excited because that is an

5 enclave community, which means it's good for North

6 Bergen and Hudson County and Downtown Jersey City.

7 We're excited, and we greatly appreciate your time

8 and attention and your thought-out questions.  Thank

9 you very much.

10                MS. FERRARA:  Mr. Chairman, the last

11 item is under new business.  Mr. Chairman, as you

12 know, tonight is Commissioner Arencibia's last

13 meeting, and he will be retiring as of July 31st,

14 and we know he's really leaving for Florida.  I

15 would like to in behalf of the Board and the

16 Planning Board professionals to acknowledge your

17 long service to Hudson County Planning Board from

18 2003 to 2015, and I just wanted to say that,

19 Demetrio, you're going to be sorely missed.  We wish

20 the best of luck in your future endeavors.

21 Congratulations.

22                COMMISSIONER ARENCIBIA:  Thank you.

23 You caught me off guard.  I have been on this Board

24 for 26 years.  So it's a long time.  Renee is

25 probably the only other Member that's been here so
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1 long, and it's a long time to be on this Planning

2 Board.  But my wife got a promotion down in Tampa,

3 and it just lined up.  You know she's already down

4 in Florida, so a lot of dramatic changes have

5 occurred in the County; in 1989, I started.

6           I appreciate serving on this Board.  I

7 never served as Chairman.  That's okay, and you

8 know, it always feels like home.  It's where I grew

9 up.  I'm going to miss Hudson County.  I'm going to

10 miss working on this Board.  Thank you very much.

11                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  If there is nothing

12 else, the next meeting is Wednesday, August 19th at

13 6:30 p.m.  With that, can we have a motion to

14 adjourn?

15                COMMISSIONER MEHTA:  Motion.

16                FREEHOLDER KOPACZ:  Second.

17                CHAIRMAN CRYAN:  All in favor.

18               (Whereupon the proceeding is then

19 concluded at 8:09 p.m.)

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1              C E R T I F I C A T I O N

2

3           I, SHARI CATHEY, CCR, RPR, License No.

4 30XI00234700, and Notary Public of the State of New

5 Jersey, hereby certify that the proceedings herein

6 are from the notes taken by me of a Regular Caucus

7 Meeting of the Hudson County Planning Board, held on

8 Wednesday, July 15, 2015; and that this is a correct

9 transcript of the same.

10

11                           <%Signature%>

12                          ___________________________

13                           SHARI CATHEY, CCR, RPR

                          A NOTARY PUBLIC of the

14                           State of New Jersey

                          I.D. No. 2283786

15                           Commission Expires 2/4/17

16

17
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21

22

23

24
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